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	Q.1
	If we improve the water and energy efficiency in an industrial facility, would this be an eligible project?

	A.1
	As indicated in Section II.B.2., the focus of Group 1 is on developing and pilot testing innovative and pre-commercial technologies with direct energy efficiency benefits.  Energy efficiency is defined as using less energy to provide the same level of performance for products and services.  Water efficiency could be a secondary benefit but the major benefit must come from energy efficiency technologies that have the potential of reducing industrial energy use by 20 percent. See Section 1.A. for definition of energy efficiency and performance goals for technologies in this solicitation.

	Q.2
	Are carbon sequestration projects eligible for match funding?

	A.2
	No. Carbon sequestration projects are not eligible.

	Q.3
	Is municipal wastewater treatment that will result in a benefit to an industrial facility eligible?

	A.3
	Municipal wastewater treatment projects are excluded from Group 1, but are eligible for Group 2. See Section II.B.2 of the solicitation addendum.

	Q.4
	If we develop and test an advanced motor that is capable of being used in multiple sectors, in addition to industrial, would this be an eligible project?

	A.4
	Yes.  However, you will need to discuss in the project narrative (Attachment 4) how the advanced motor will impact the industrial, agriculture and water sectors.  The ability to use these motors in other sectors will be an additional benefit but it cannot be the major benefit.

	Q.5
	If a technology qualifies for an IOU rebate would that technology be eligible for the program?

	A.5
	No. A technology that is eligible for an IOU rebate is not considered a pre-commercial technology and would not be eligible for this solicitation.

	Q.6
	Are municipal water projects eligible for both groups?

	A.6
	Group 1 limits eligible municipal water projects to only water distribution systems and not water recycling or wastewater treatment, as indicated in Section II.B.2.a. Group 2 is open to all types of water projects that meet requirements in Section II.B.2.b. This will be clarified in an addendum.

	Q.7
	Are water conveyance projects eligible?

	A.7
	Yes, if the project meets the definition of energy efficiency as discussed in Question 1 and results in direct electricity savings due to improvements in the conveyance system that can be directly measureable and verifiable and benefits electric IOU ratepayers and the electricity savings is not from the embedded energy in the water.

	Q.8
	Do industrial wastewater projects qualify for both groups?

	A.8
	Yes, if the wastewater is being treated for onsite reuse.

	Q.9
	Are waste heat recovery projects eligible?

	A.9
	Yes. If the project will result in direct electricity savings and energy efficiency improvements in industrial processes. However the following are ineligible projects: a) waste heat that is used to produce electricity, or b) waste heat that is used to reduce natural gas use.

	Q.10
	Would the following be an eligible project:  There are potential industrial projects that could recover currently unused waste heat from industrial processes thereby replacing or reducing the use of an electric motor by using the recovered heat to drive a turbine to drive a fan, a pump or other end uses serving the process normally driven by an electric motor. 

	A.10
	Yes, this type of project would be eligible if it can achieve 20% net electricity savings compared to baseline equipment/systems, and does not increase the use of other energy sources like natural gas or renewables. This will be clarified in an addendum.

	Q.11
	Are projects that focus on strategy development eligible?

	A.11
	Strategy development projects are eligible if it also includes developing, testing and operationalizing the strategy in an industrial, agriculture or water facility. 

	Q.12
	Are wineries eligible for both groups?

	A.12
	Yes, wineries are eligible.

	Q.13
	If our project offsets diesel, is that eligible?

	A.13
	No, projects must have direct electricity savings (Group1) or demand response and Load shifting capabilities (Group 2).

	Q.14
	Is water recycling at a wastewater treatment plant eligible? What about water recycling at an industrial facility? If so, which group?

	A.14
	Water recycling at a wastewater treatment plant is not eligible for Group 1, but recycling as part of an industrial process is eligible for Group 1. Group 2 is open to all water projects that meet the project focus requirements in Section II.B.2.b.

	Q.15
	I’m a manufacturing plant that would like to implement a hydraulic power project, am I eligible for Group 1 or Group 2?

	A.15
	Yes, if the hydraulic power can achieve energy efficiency by reducing electricity consumption, then the project would be eligible for both groups.

	Q.16
	Is this solicitation open to international solicitants?

	A.16
	Yes, international solicitants are eligible to apply.

	Q.17
	If we use waste heat to generate electricity and reduce site electricity in an innovative way - is that qualified?

	A.17
	No, electricity generation projects are ineligible.

	Q.18
	Would the following be an eligible project:  The telecommunications industry utilizes very large existing battery backup storage systems to provide 100% reliability of power, should the grid go down, for the telecommunications switching equipment. This storage could be utilized to respond to demand response events. The storage will be dispatched automatically upon a call for such dispatch. To implement the project and dispatch the storage will require new control hardware and the development of programming overlaid on top of the existing facility power control system.

	A.18
	Yes, but only the control hardware and programing would be eligible.  The battery backup storage system would need to be covered with match funds and is not eligible for funding by the grant. This will be clarified in an addendum.

	Q.19
	Would the following be an eligible project:  Data centers use large quantities of electricity to provide cooling for the data center equipment.  There is potential to reduce electric energy consumption by developing a technology that will reduce the energy consumption of cooling the data center by developing a direct liquid cooling system for servers rather than a conventional hot aisle/cold aisle air cooled system.

	A.19
	This project would only be eligible if it could result in at least 20 percent reduction in electricity used for data center cooling and shows technical advancements beyond those projects funded in the past by the Energy Commission (see Energy Innovation Showcase link: innovation.energy.ca.gov).  

	Q.20
	Would the CEC consider projects that use waste heat from the industrial process, and convert this energy into useful heat that the process can use? The process may involve slight decrease, or slight increase in the use of electricity, but there would be an overall reduction of energy in the industrial process.

	A.20
	No. The majority of the savings must come from reductions in electricity use.

	Q.21
	What is the baseline for the 25% savings for data center improvement listed in Section II.B.2.a: Group 1: Pilot Tests of Innovative Energy Efficiency Technologies-Data Centers? A state of the art, cold aisle hot aisle containment data center with air and/or water economizers might have a PUE of 1.1. Achieving 25% savings would be impossible in this case. If we are applying any improved cooling solution to a 65 F legacy data center with no containment, then it would be trivial. According to http://www.energy.ca.gov/2013publications/CEC-500-2013-085/CEC-500-2013-085.pdf the baseline PUE is 1.5 for data centers over 1 MW and 1.8 for smaller data centers, would this be a reasonable baseline?

	A.21
	The PUE baselines stated in your question, PUE’s between 1.5 and 1.8 are reasonable baselines to use for data centers. An addendum will be prepared to reduce the required savings to 20% for data center cooling, instead of 25%. However, the method for determining the actual baseline PUE will be described in the measurement and verification plan in the Project Narrative, Attachment 4, item 1.f.
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	Q.22
	Are desalination projects eligible under Group 1?

	A.22
	No.

	Q.23
	For Group 1, is a project focused on Agricultural wastewater treatment located on a university campus eligible?

	A.23
	Yes, if all of the following are met: 
1. The wastewater treatment is solely for agricultural purposes and not for treating the entire campus wastewater, 
2. The University is in an IOU electric service territory, 
3. The project focuses on wastewater disinfection technologies,
4. The treated wastewater is being reused onsite, and 
5. The project results in direct electrical savings.

	Q.24
	For Group 1, is it permitted to use Artificial Intelligence with ubiquitous IoT data for energy optimization in buildings (Ex. Use lighting sensors data, HVAC equipment diagnostic data and HVAC BMS operating data and use for EE and DR optimization)?    

	A.24
	The example given is related to buildings. However, if the controls were directly related to reducing electrical energy associated with industrial process then it would be eligible.

	Q.25
	For Group 1, is a proposal acceptable where the proposed technology reduces the overall energy consumption, but will increase the amount of electricity consumed?

	A.25
	No. For Group 1, the project must have the potential to result in direct electricity savings.

	Q.26
	Under Group 1, does including DR and demand savings goals generally helps an EE proposal scoring-wise or not at all?

	A.26
	The main focus is energy efficiency and kWh savings. Demand response will be considered an added benefit.

	Q.27
	Would a wavelength selective self-powered greenhouse fit in the definition of an energy efficient technology?

	A.27
	No. Energy generation is not an eligible project in this solicitation.
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	Q.28
	Are data centers eligible for Group 2?

	A.28
	Yes.

	Q.29
	For group 2, is municipal wastewater treatment eligible?

	A.29
	Yes.

	Q.30
	What sort of demand response technologies are you looking for, such as ancillary services, peak load reductions, load shifting, opportunities under existing tariff/program options?

	A.30
	There are multiple demand response participation opportunities in existing California Independent System Operator markets as well as through aggregator and utility programs.  At a basic level, DR control systems can be used to optimize customer costs under current tariff/rate designs (i.e. TOU rates and demand charges). This solicitation anticipates funding proposals that develop systems that not only provide basic DR services, but expand customer participation opportunities in more dynamic DR markets and programs that provide flexible and fast-response resources to the grid. Scores will reflect the degree to which a proposal develops and tests systems and strategies with the potential to facilitate more frequent participation (and thus provide a more useful resource to the grid) and provide value to the participating customers (by balancing energy cost reductions with production and operational needs).

	Q.31
	Will energy efficiency hurt or help Group 2?

	A.31
	The main focus is demand response and load shifting. Energy efficiency will be considered an added benefit.

	Q.32
	Would PVs and control strategies be eligible for funding as a DR strategy?

	A.32
	No. However, "control strategies" for end uses (and related equipment such as sensors, switches and more efficient end use equipment such as motors, pumps, compressors, etc.) are eligible for funding.

	Q.33
	I’m a water district and plan to do a DR project that will affect multiple equipment throughout the distribution system, what is considered the site location—since the project could encompass multiple locations.

	A.33
	A more comprehensive plan to develop, test, document and validate technologies and methods of improving efficiency in a water district distribution system is a desirable project.  For CEQA purposes, the different locations where physical changes to the environment are made are treated as independent sites.  In such a situation, the application should identify all sites as parts of a single project.

	Q.34
	a) How does the GFO consider novel, currently-unavailable packages of commercially-available technologies used to create new energy management strategies? 
b) Are such new, pre-commercial “strategies” of energy management considered as part of this R&D funding opportunity, or would a proposal including such strategies be considered non-responsive due to the "pre-commercial technology" requirement?

	A.34
	a) This type of project appears to meet the definition of pre-commercial technology if the strategy also includes a test element. However, proposals must justify that the technology/strategy is beyond basic research and has potential for energy savings as requested in the project narrative (Section II.B.2.3.)
b) The proposal can include strategy development projects if it also includes developing, testing and operationalizing the strategy in an industrial, agriculture or water facility.  Please see response to Question 11. 

	Q.35
	For Group 2, are projects focusing on demand response for a water distribution network in urban water systems eligible?

	A.35
	Yes. Also, please see the response to Question 33 regarding CEQA treatment of "site" for a system with multiple physical locations.

	Q.36
	Is 20% demand reduction needed during the summer peak hours (i.e., address temperature dependent load) or anytime (even during off hours)?

	A.36
	The 20% demand reduction capability (per Section I.A. of the solicitation manual) is not required across all hours of the year, nor the summer peak demand period.  Also, please see the response to Question 30.

	Q.37
	Will thermal storage (e.g., for temperature sensitive loads) be considered towards 20% demand reduction?

	A.37
	Yes, under the following scenarios: 
a) Project adds DR controls to existing equipment, processes and thermal mass (e.g. pre-cooling using HVAC equipment, product stock and shell mass in refrigerated warehouses and other such strategies) and this will be considered toward the 20% demand reduction. 
b) Expansion of existing thermal storage capacity that is critical to achieving the DR capacity goal. However, the justification for that expansion in terms of cost and benefits to the grid must be clearly articulated in the Project Narrative, Section I, Technical Merit and Need.  Thermal storage that can be utilized to facilitate dynamic DR strategies that help balance intermittent renewable generation is desirable. The efficiency implications of proposed thermal storage strategies (i.e. energy losses) to achieve DR should be clearly articulated and estimated quantitatively in the proposal.  See also response to questions 30.

Devices/equipment added with the sole purpose of providing thermal storage capacity is not eligible for funding in this solicitation, but additions to existing thermal capacity are eligible.

	Q.38
	Under Group 2, whether including EE savings goals generally helps a DR proposal scoring-wise or not at all?

	A.38
	Please see response to Question 31.

	Q.39
	Under Group 2, does the type of DR sought include more than just peak load reduction and load shifting, but also include flexible forms of DR targeting times of increases power consumption needs (not just decreased consumption) and ramping up usage to balance intermittent generation?

	A.39
	Yes. Proposals to develop dynamic DR capacity and strategies--which includes not just reducing load when needed but also increasing load to balance intermittent renewable generation--are desired under Group 2.  Also, please see the responses to Questions 30, 36, 37.

	Q.40
	Under Group 2, does DR in wastewater treatment and water recycling plants qualify?

	A.40
	Yes.

	Q.41
	Under Group 2, does DR in data centers qualify?

	A.41
	Yes.

	Q.42
	To what extent can including energy efficiency (EE) innovations help the scoring of a proposal submitted under Group 2 in which the proposal focuses on control strategies for DR? Would including EE savings goals generally help or hurt a Group 2 proposal?

	A.42
	Please see response to Question 31.

	Q.43
	Under Group 2, if the customer is a water district that will test new DR control strategies with its equipment physically located at different water processing facilities, then would the applicant specify the site of the central control center as the test site or the sites of the individual water facilities (with equipment being centrally controlled) as the test sites?

	A.43
	Please see response to Question 33.

	Q.44
	Under Group 2, is it acceptable for one proposal to include two different test sites that differ by industrial customer type and type of process control technologies being investigated to accommodate DR?”

	A.44
	Yes.

	Q.45
	a) Does DR using pumps that convey recycled water from water recycling plants (as a source of water supply), qualify?
b) If yes, can a water recycling plant serve as a test site (for DR using pumps for conveyance instead of DR in waste water treatment)?

	A.45
	a) Yes.
b) Yes, if the test site is located within an IOU electric service territory.

	Q.46
	Could the CEC provide more detail about the types of demand response (DR) they are targeting for Group 2 of this solicitation? (e.g. manual DR, scheduled load reduction, time of use, automated DR, ancillary services, etc.)

	A.46
	Please see responses to Questions 30 and 39.

	Q.47
	Are demonstration sites required for Group 2 of this solicitation?

	A.47
	Yes, but they should be pilot sites.

	Q.48
	For Group 2, are projects that focus on load shifting in municipal water and wastewater treatment systems eligible? How about load shifting in municipal water and recycled water distribution systems?

	A.48
	Yes, municipal water and wastewater treatment systems, and municipal water and recycled water distribution systems are eligible for Group 2.
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	Q.49
	Do we need to submit a hard copy along with our electronic submission?

	A.49
	If you are using the online submittal system, then you do not need to submit a hard copy. However, if you do not plan to use the online system, then yes you need to submit a hard copy with a USB or CD-ROM. See Section III.B and Section III.C in the solicitation manual.

	Q.50
	Can the format files be .doc or .docx?

	A.50
	Yes, both Word file formats are acceptable.

	Q.51
	Please clarify that you prefer files to be in .doc format (and not .docx) rather than PDF format, except for files containing signatures.

	A.51
	As indicated in Section III.B, electronic files must be in Microsoft Word XP format and Excel Office Suite formats unless originally provided in the solicitation in another format.  Attachments requiring signatures may be scanned and submitted in PDF format.  Completed Budget Forms, Attachment 7, must be in Excel format.

	Q.52
	Who should we address the support letters?

	A.52
	The support letters must be addressed to the applicant.

	Q.53
	If our project has both energy efficiency and demand response, which group should we apply for?

	A.53
	If energy efficiency has a larger benefit, submit the proposal under Group 1. If demand response has a larger benefit, then submit the proposal to Group 2.

	Q.54
	Can we submit more than one application and/or partner with another entity provided the work tasks do not overlap?  

	A.54
	Yes, you can submit multiple applications as long as there is not overlap. However, primes can not receive more than two awards. Please see Section I.A and Section II.B.2 of the solicitation manual.

	Q.55
	The California Energy Commission usually considers the future commercialization of its funded technologies.  
a) Can you clarify if a commercialization plan is needed besides stating the markets for use of the tested technology and include[ing] any market studies showing the need and interest (II.B.3: Project Narrative, Technical Merit and Need). 
b) Where and how do we include commercialization in our proposed budget form?

	A.55
	a) A commercialization plan or market study does not need to be submitted.  However, you must explain in the project narrative (Attachment 4, and Section IV.F, the technical merits and needs of your technology and the impacted market segments in the Impacts and Benefits to CA ratepayers (Attachment 4, Section 3).
b) You will include commercialization plans in the Statement of Work, Attachment 6 (see TBD-2 and TBD-3 tasks).  Costs associated with preparing the products in Attachment 6 can be included in the budget forms in Attachment 7.

	Q.56
	a) Does the 'References' page for the Project Narrative counts towards the 20 page limit? 
B) Or is it ok to have 21 pages as long as there are only references on the last page?

	A.56
	a) The Reference and Work Product Form (Attachment 9) is not part of the Project Narrative and not included as part of the 20 pages. However, item 2 of the Project Narrative does ask how you plan to coordinate the various tasks with your team members.  This narrative discussion is part of the Project Narrative covered by the 20 pages. 
b) The page limits listed in Section III.A are recommendations.

	Q.57
	For the Project Narrative form is it acceptable to give the answers referencing the question number but omit the questions?

	A.57
	Yes.

	Q.58
	Do the resumes need to comply with the Arial 11 font and margin and spacing formatting requirements?

	A.58
	No.

	Q.59
	Who can submit online: Authorized representative, Project Manager or anyone in the organization?

	A.59
	Anyone can submit but the Application Form (Attachment 1) must be signed by an authorized representative of the applicant who can enter into agreement with the Energy Commission.

	Q.60
	When will the online system be ready to accept proposals in response to this opportunity?

	A.60
	The on-line system is ready to accept proposals.  Please go to https://gss.energy.ca.gov/Application/ApplicationSelectSolicitation.aspx?pon=GFO-16-305.

	Q.61
	For online submission, this project is not yet listed. That is, we can’t create an application in response to this opportunity.

	A.61
	Please see response to Question 60.

	Q.62
	Since the online submission system is new, please clarify the submission process. Is it safe to assume that anyone from the organization can submit the proposal online, as long as the submission includes the authorized signatures? That is, the authorized representative does not have to be the person submitting the documents?

	A.62
	Please see response to Question 59.

	Q.63
	Is there are any requirements for how the files are to be named during online submission, please provide them.

	A.63
	The files should be named according to the attachment numbers and section names listed in Section III.D.

	Q.64
	Is there or is there not an Attachment 6A to the proposal?

	A.64
	Attachment 6A, Project Schedule, is required and is posted at: http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/GFO-16-305/

	Q.65
	The solicitation indicates that Attachment 6A is required as part of our submission, but no Attachment 6A has been made available. Please clarify.

	A.65
	Please see response to question 64.
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	Q.66
	What constitutes a test site?

	A.66
	Test sites can be at an industrial facility, agriculture site, water facility, or at a laboratory facility that is set up to simulate the particular sector that is the focus of the research project.

	Q.67
	Can the identity of the site be confidential?

	A.67
	No, the site location must be identified in Attachment 1 and Attachment 8, otherwise it will fail the screening criteria and be disqualified.

	Q.68
	Are municipal sites eligible to be a demonstration site?

	A.68
	Yes, municipal sites are eligible to be test sites, if they are in an electric IOU service territory, and the project is not focused on wastewater treatment.

	Q.69
	Is a test site required?

	A.69
	Yes, for both groups.
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	Q.70
	Would water pumping efficiency be covered under agricultural and water process technologies or under the general industrial efficiency category?

	A.70
	It depends on the application.  If the water pumping is associated with an industrial facility, then it would fit under General Industrial Energy Efficiency.  If it is associated with agricultural irrigation, then it would fit under the agricultural and water process grouping.  However, Attachment 1 (application form) only asks that you identify whether the project falls in Group 1 or Group 2.

	Q.71
	In Section II.B.2 under Agricultural and Water Process Technologies—must our project include both agricultural and water?

	A.71
	No, it was meant to be Agricultural or Water. We will correct in an addendum.

	Q.72
	Are agricultural projects only limited to water in Groups 1 and 2? As stated in Section II.B.2.?

	A.72
	No, Section II.B.2 lists "Potential"/"Example" projects, and is not limited to what is stated there. However, please see response to Questions in the Eligibility Section of the Q&A’s for examples of ineligible projects.

	Q.73
	For a technology pilot in Group 1, can energy savings include the onsite embedded energy savings from reducing water use (e.g. avoiding onsite well pumping, reduced onsite water treatment, etc.)?

	A.73
	No.

	Q.74
	Will attachment 12 be amended to include numbers for Agriculture?

	A.74
	Yes, a new version of Attachment 12 will be provided in the upcoming addendum.
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	Q.75
	Please clarify the definition of pre commercial.

	A.75
	Section I.B defines Pre-Commercial as follows:
Pre-commercial Technology means a technology that has not reached commercial maturity or been deployed at scales sufficiently large and in conditions sufficiently reflective of anticipated actual operating environments to enable the appraisal of operational and performance characteristics, or of financial risks. Examples of pre-commercial technologies can include technologies that have been demonstrated out-of-state/country or technologies that have been tested in one sector but not in another.

	Q.76
	If a project uses commercially available components in a new way, would this be considered pre-commercial?

	A.76
	Yes, it is possible to create a system using commercially available components in an innovative way, and in that sense the system would be pre-commercial.

	Q.77
	Is the wine industry considered agriculture or industrial?

	A.77
	The wine industry is considered both agricultural and industrial. Grape growing is agricultural and wine production is industrial.

	Q.78
	a) Define the water sector?
b) Is municipal water eligible?

	A.78
	a) The water sector includes water treatment that results in production of potable water, agricultural irrigation, including pumping, water distribution, and re-use and recycle of industrial wastewater for on-site use.
b) For Group 1, water distribution is the only eligible water project on a municipal level. For Group 2, all types of water projects on a municipal level are eligible. An addendum will be made for clarification. 

	Q.79
	The solicitation states that “Municipal wastewater treatment projects are excluded …”
a) What is the definition of “wastewater?” 
b) Does it include treatment for potable reuse (so additional treatment after conventional secondary or tertiary wastewater treatment)?
c) Or are municipal potable reuse project eligible? 
d) Are municipal water treatment projects included (such as seawater desalination, brackish water desalination, impaired groundwater)?

	A.79
	a) Wastewater is water containing wastes from residential, commercial, and industrial processes. Municipal wastewater contains sewage, gray water (e.g., water from sinks and showers), and sometimes industrial wastewater (http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/).
b) Yes.
c) Municipal potable reuse projects are not eligible for Group 1, but are eligible for Group 2.
d) Municipal water treatment projects are not eligible for Group 1, but are eligible for Group 2.

	Q.80
	How is the “Industrial” sector defined for this grant?

	A.80
	The industrial sector is comprised of facilities and equipment used for large scale production, processing, assembly of goods or manufacturing. Examples include food processing, metal fabrication, glass work, pharmaceutical processing, etc.

	Q.81
	Does energy efficiency mean a great new version of an LED light? Could it mean adding windows instead of an LED light since no energy is being used at all in that process? Essentially, what is the scope of energy efficiency projects you are looking us to deeply dive into?

	A.81
	Energy efficiency is defined as using less energy to provide the same level of performance for products and services. From an industrial perspective, it could mean development of a new manufacturing process or materials that uses less electricity to operate than current processes or materials.

	Q.82
	What is the precise qualification/definition of energy efficiency? Does it include things like energy reduction? Please expand on the type of energy efficiency goals/projects you have in mind?

	A.82
	The goal is to achieve 20% net electrical energy savings of the equipment/system without increasing other energy usage. This means that the proposed technology should have the potential of reducing electricity consumption by 20% when compared to currently available technologies doing the same work. Also, see the definition of energy efficiency from Question 81.

	Q.83
	Does the terminology “improve disinfection technologies to allow for water reuse in agricultural sectors” include energy-efficient technologies which remove selenium and pesticides from farm land run-off, which then allows for the treated water to be used to grow crops?  Could this terminology also include removing high levels of salt from such water also, so the water can be re-used for agricultural purposes?

	A.83
	No, disinfection technologies remove biological contaminants from water. For Group 1, project focus on contaminant removal (selenium and pesticides) for onsite water reuse is not an eligible project.

	Q.84
	Can you clarify if the project energy savings is 20% (I.B: Purpose of Solicitation) or 25% (II.B.2.a: Group 1: Pilot Tests of Innovative Energy Efficiency Technologies-Data Centers)?

	A.84
	An addendum will be made to the manual to state the goal is 20% of equipment/system electrical energy efficiency.

	Q.85
	How does the GFO consider novel, currently-unavailable packages of commercially-available technologies used to create new energy management strategies? Are such new, pre-commercial *strategies* of energy management considered as part of this R&D funding opportunity, or would a proposal including such strategies be considered non-responsive due to the "pre-commercial technology" requirement?

	A.85
	Please see response to Question 34.
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	Q.86
	What is maximum project duration?

	A.86
	All projects must be completed by January 29, 2021.  See Section I.G of the grant manual.

	Q.87
	Please explain the royalty requirements.

	A.87
	The royalty provisions are in the EPIC Terms and Conditions which can be found at: http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/pier.html#epicterms. Item 22, page 24 states: The recipient will pay the Energy Commission a royalty of one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the sales price of all sales for which the Recipient receives a payment, beginning on the Agreement’s effective date and extending for ten (10) years from the Agreement’s end date. 

	Q.88
	If grant funding and the matching contribution is only for equipment costs (no installation, repair, or maintenance work), would prevailing wage still need to be paid for these tasks?

	A.88
	Public works projects cannot be split into smaller projects for the purpose of evading prevailing wage requirements (see Cal. Code Regs., tit. 8, § 16100(b)(6)).  Prevailing wage must be paid on public works, which is defined in Labor Code section 1720 as: “construction, alteration, demolition, installation, or repair work done under contract and paid for in whole or in part out of public funds...” If the applicant is unsure whether their project is a public work project, as defined by the Labor Code, the applicant should consult the Department of Industrial Relations to obtain a timely determination.

	Q.89
	The solicitation notes that “all submitted documents will become public records” and that “the Energy Commission will not accept or retain applications that identify any portion as confidential.” Just for clarification – does this apply to the budget as well? With potentially proprietary information on costs in the budget, we want to ensure our understanding of this language.

	A.89
	Yes, all attachments in the application become public information. Any confidential information in the proposal is grounds for rejection. 
The Energy Commission will not accept or retain applications that identify any portion as confidential. All documents will become public records. If confidential information is submitted, the application will be rejected per screening criteria 6, Section IV.E. See Section IV.D.3 of the grant manual for more information on confidentiality.
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	Q.90
	Who reviews the proposals?

	A.90
	Technical staff at the Energy Commission. They may be assisted by technical reviewers who may be from outside of the agency.

	Q.91
	How will the awards be made—by group or score?

	A.91
	The NOPA will be posted by group with proposals ranked within each group.

	Q.92
	Is energy and water efficiency equally weighted?

	A.92
	For Group 1, Energy Efficiency is the main focus. However, if the project is a water project, having water savings is a plus.

	Q.93
	When does the research work need to be completed?

	A.93
	Please see response to Question 86.

	Q.94
	What is the reporting frequency?

	A.94
	Progress Reports are due monthly and deliverables are due according to the schedule in Attachment 6A. Please also see requirements in Attachment 6, subtask 1.6.

	Q.95
	Where can we get information on past grants?

	A.95
	You can look up past solicitations at http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/epic.html and see the past NOPAs or you can look at past projects at innovation.energy.ca.gov.

	Q.96
	Can the embedded energy in water be included in the calculation of energy savings?

	A.96
	No, this solicitation is looking for direct electrical energy savings in Group 1 and load reductions (kW) in Group 2. Embedded energy savings cannot be counted towards the 20% energy savings. Please also see response to Question 84.

	Q.97
	How would you consider a project that has both electrical and thermal savings?

	A.97
	The majority of the savings must come from electricity savings, and the thermal savings will be considered a bonus benefit.

	Q.98
	a) If an entity in the proposal is a self-identified minority owned farm, does the applicant have an obligation to go beyond this self-identification? 
b) Does CEC have a list of approved minority owned farms that are part of its data bank for project consideration?

	A.98
	a) The application for this solicitation does not ask for identification at this level.
b) The CEC does not have a list of minority farmers.

	Q.99
	I’m interested in supporting minority farmers.  Where can I get more information?

	A.99
	Please see response to Question 98.

	Q.100
	Is there a DVBE requirement?

	A.100
	No.

	Q.101
	If the applicant themselves are not ratepayers for electric services through PG&E, San Diego Gas and Electric, or Southern California Edison Co., does this negatively impact the application at all?

	A.101
	Applicants do not need to be located in electric IOU service territories but test sites must be in electric IOU service territories. Applicants with test sites not in electric IOU service territory will be disqualified. Please see Screening Criteria 7 in Section IV.E.

	Q.102
	Do we have to measure energy use before and after the treatment with new technology? Or, would CEC be ok to accept proposal that includes new efficient technology, especially when the industrial company is planning to increase its production?

	A.102
	As part of your measurement and verification plan, you must discuss how you plan to measure the baseline before and after the new technology is implemented. Accounting for a change in production should be considered in the baseline calculations. Also see Section II.B.5 and Scoring Criteria 1.f.

	Q.103
	Where is the savings measured? Is it at the individual technology/solution/strategy level or at the facility meter level?

	A.103
	The 20% savings, as indicated in the response to Question 84, is at the equipment/system level and not at the facility level. Your measurement and verification plan can explain how you will use facility meters to verify the accuracy of the monitored savings from the technology.

	Q.104
	If such monitoring indicates that the awardee has substantially misrepresented the savings from their technology will the awardee be barred from future CEC grant solicitations?

	A.104
	This will need to be evaluated in a case by case basis as there is inherent risk associated with all research projects.

	Q.105
	After a grant is awarded & the project commences, will the recipient be able to electronically submit invoices & progress reports?

	A.105
	No, there is not a system in place for us to accept electronic invoices.  Progress reports can be submitted to the CAM via email.

	Q.106
	"The scoring criteria notes “7.   Ratio of Direct Labor and Fringe Benefit Rates to Loaded Labor Rates: The score for this criterion will derive from the budget forms, which compares the total direct labor and fringe benefits costs to the total loaded rate (Total Direct Labor + Total Fringe)/ (Total Direct Labor + Total Fringe + Total Indirect + Total Profit). This ratio, as a percentage, is multiplied by the possible points for this criterion and rounded two decimal places.” 

When this references direct labor, is the consideration “direct costs” or only direct labor? "

	A.106
	Criteria 7 refers Direct Labor and Fringe Benefit costs to loaded labor costs from the Category Budget of Attachment 7. The formula pulls from the sum of Direct Labor and Fringe Benefit costs and compares it to these costs plus the Indirect and Profit costs.  It does not include other Direct Costs.
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	Q.107
	Can I be a prime on group 1 and a sub on group 2?

	A.107
	No, any entity that is a prime in one proposal cannot be a subcontractor in another proposal, regardless of group. See Section I.A and Section II.B.2 of the solicitation manual.

	Q.108
	Can you be a prime in Phase 1 and a sub on Phase 2?

	A.108
	No, please see response to Question 107.

	Q.109
	Can a prime be a subcontractor—either major (>$100K) or minor sub (<$100K)?

	A.109
	No, please see response to Question 107.

	Q.110
	If a prime is unaware that a subcontractor has applied as a prime, would one or both applications be disqualified?

	A.110
	The proposal in which the subcontractor submitted as a prime will be disqualified, but the other proposal would still be evaluated.

	Q.111
	Can the same entity be a prime or sub?

	A.111
	No, please see response to Question 107.

	Q.112
	As potential sub-awardee of a proposal we are putting together expressed a concern regarding the statement on Page 16 of the solicitation.

“The Energy Commission reserves the right to limit the number of awarded proposals for this solicitation to two per entity.”

a) If that institution is submitting two other proposals as the lead entity, would it impact our proposal where it is only a sub-awardee? 
b) Or would the Commission only count proposals submitted as the lead entity in that limit of 2?

	A.112
	a) No, the proposal that has the institution as a subcontractor is still eligible, but the entity that is a prime in one proposal and a sub in another will have its prime proposal disqualified. 
b) The Commission will count proposals submitted as the lead entity in the limit of 2. The limit of 2 does not apply to subcontractors.

	Q.113
	A department at Fresno State is already taking lead to apply for a 16-305 grant. However, my department is working with two other folks who want to apply for the grant. We will play a subsidiary support role only in their grant proposal and not be lead like them. Is Fresno State still eligible in terms of these three grants? One of them being lead grant applicant and in two others playing a supportive role to the lead applicants who are applying?

	A.113
	All departments within Fresno State are considered to be one entity. If all departments are within the same campus and the proposal has some departments as a prime and others as a subcontractor, then the restriction on prime and subs does not apply. However, if the department is working with outside entities as a subcontractor, while also applying as a prime contractor, then the department acting as the prime in the proposals will be disqualified.

	Q.114
	We are being asked to participate as a subcontractor on a grant proposal for GFO 16-305. At the same time, we are considering submitting a separate proposal for a different scope of work where we would be the prime. Both proposals would be under "Group 1." Will this disqualify us from consideration for either or both of the proposals? If not, and they both rank high, are we eligible to win awards for both proposals?

	A.114
	The proposal in which you submitted as a prime will be disqualified.

	Q.115
	If two organizations are submitting two separate proposals as Prime Applicants for this solicitation, can they be on each other's Technical Advisory Groups, and provide letters of support for each other, or would that disqualify them?

	A.115
	It would be fine to have the two organizations on each other’s Technical Advisory Committees. However, if either is receiving EPIC funds as a subcontractor, then both prime applicant proposals could be disqualified.

	Q.116
	Please confirm that multiple subcontractors are allowed for this solicitation, one or more of which may be major (i.e., may be given 25% or more of the total Energy Commission funds requested).

	A.116
	Yes, a project proposal can have multiple entities as major subcontractors and/or minor subcontractors.

	Q.117
	Please confirm that the Recipient does not have to be awarded the majority of the requested funds and the total requested funds for subcontractors (or for a single subcontractor) can be more than for the Recipient.

	A.117
	Subcontractors could receive more EPIC funds than the prime contractor. The Project Narrative will need to explain the relationship between primes that are non-technical and are set up primarily for administrative purposes. These types of proposals may receive lower scores.

	Q.118
	a) Even if someone else in our University is applying as the lead, can our department who is not applying for the grant still provide a letter of support for an organization we are working with? 
b) Basically, we will not be penalized for applying for the grant as a lead and offering a support letter for another organization that is also applying for the grant?

	A.118
	a) Yes, you can provide a letter of support on a competing proposal.
b) No, you will not be penalized.

	Q.119
	Can a key subcontractor (over $100,000 in grant funds) be on separate applications?

	A.119
	A subcontractor cannot be on other applications as a prime, but can be a subcontractor on other applications.

	Q.120
	We are planning to be a subcontracting partner on a project with another institution (lead institution) on a Group 1 proposal.  Our project director has an industry colleague which we would like to include in our scope of work, but we are not yet sure if this person will participate as an independent consultant or as a subcontractor to our organization, not the lead institution. Is it allowable for a subcontractor to have a third/fourth tier flow down of funding to a subcontractor?

	A.120
	If the industry colleague is a major subcontractor ($100,000 or more) then it would be preferred to have that person be a subcontractor to the prime. If the industry colleague is a minor subcontractor, then it would not make a difference as to whom that person is a subcontractor to.
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	Q.121
	Is there a salary cap on things like research analysis, R&D, or other administrative functions for the grant? Can you provide specific caps to be aware of?

	A.121
	There are no budget caps, except for the maximum requested amount in Section I.F.

	Q.122
	Regarding the additional funding in phase 2 of financing, will successful recipients be expected to alter their program should more funds be awarded?

	A.122
	Successful applicants from Phase 1 who are recommended for an award cannot alter their application from Phase 1 if more funds are identified in Phase 2. If Phase 1 applicants were awarded for two proposals, that applicant could decline the award and apply for Phase 2 if they desire.

	Q.123
	How soon a successful applicant would be notified of additional funding after the rounds of funding are over and will time be extended to complete the project as funded?

	A.123
	The CEC will send out a notice when Phase 2 funds are available along with the deadline to submit applications. We estimate at least two weeks between notification of Phase 2 and when proposals are due.

	Q.124
	We want to propose a pilot that includes a technology that is sourced from a company in Canada. However, the EPIC funds would be spent on the Engineering/Design-Build contractor who would be the one to buy the technology direct from Canada and incorporate it into their design for a pilot project. Therefore, the funds will not go directly to the international company. Will this be permitted?

	A.124
	Though this will be permitted, the EPIC funds to the engineering design build contractor may not qualify as “funds spend in California,” per scoring criteria 6, Section IV.F.  For instance, if the engineering firm purchases the equipment directly from the Canadian firm, then this would not count as funds spent in CA.  If the engineering firm purchases the equipment from a California company and the sales occurred in CA, then this would count as funds spent in CA.  Information on funds spent in CA will be scored in Criteria 6.
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